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CARESTREAM DENTAL LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

The direciors presant their Strategic Report of Carestream Dental Limited (the "Company”) for the year ended
31 December 2019.

Business review

The princlpal activities of the Company are the development, sale and support of dental software products and
the sale and support of hardware equipment. induding digital imaging products. The Company's strategy is to
grow markeat share of software and imaging product by offering a full range of products and services and
excellent customer service. There are a number of market segments, NHS, private dentistry and corporate
groups and we aim to have products and services to suit all of these customers.

The profit for the financial year, after taxation, amounted to £2,782,722 (2018: £4,530,202). The directors
haven't declared a dividend in 2019.

The net assets of tha Company at 31 December 2018 were £11,024 472 (2018; £8,241,750),

Principal risks and uncertaintles

The management of the business and the execution of the Company’s strategy ars subject to a number of risks.
The key business risks affecting the Company are considered to relate to the dental Industry environment and
competition.

The economy has been fairly stable during 2018 and the dental industry continued to invest in new technology.
The market for dental practice software is highly competitive and is moving towards cloud-based systems.
Ralatinnships with the large corporate groups continue to be strong.

However, due to the very high proportion of imported dental products, Brexit is regarded as a major risk factor
for the foreseeable future. The depreciation of £- Sterling is putting pressure on impori costs and prices.

The global pandemic has had an impaci on the Company's subsidiary undertakings as explained in note 24 to
the financial statements.

Financlal key performance indicators ("KPIs™)

Given the straightforward nature of the business, the Company's directors are of the opinion that the analysia of
the key KPis of turnover and operating profit is adequale to understand the performance and development.

Tumover decreased from £15,189,984 in 2018, to £14,510,533 in 2019, a decrease of 4.5%.

QOperating profit decreased by 20.7% year on year fram £4,273,509 in 2018 to £3,388,142 in 2019.

This report was approved by the board and sighed on its behalf by:

—h
P on
A Kinson
Director

Date: 3 July 2020
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CARESTREAM DENTAL L.IMITED

OIRECTORS' REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

The diractors present their annual report and the audited financial statements of Carestream Dental Limited (the
"Company™ for the year ended 31 December 2019,

Principal activities

The principal activities of the Company are the development, sale and suppon of dental soflware products and
the sale and suppont of hardware equipment, including digital imaging producta.

Results and dividends

The profit for the financial year amounted to £2,782,722 (2018: £4,530,202).

During the year a dividend of £NH (2018: £Nil) was declared and paid. No final dividend is proposed.

Directors

The directors who served during the year and up to the date of signing of financial statements were:

J L Guinn

A Kinson

R K Schmidt

Directors’ qualifying third party indemnity provisions

The Company has granted an indemnity to its directors against liability in respect of proceedings brought by
third parties, subjecl to the conditions set out in the Companies Act 2008. Such qualifying third party indemnity
provision was in force throughout the year and remains in force as at the date of approving the Directors’
Report.

Future developments

The directors intend to maintan and pursue tha current strategy of the Company during the foreseeable future.
Rafer to note 24 of the financial statements regarding the impact of Covid-19.

Financial instruments

The Company is financed by the Company's subsidiary undertakings and follows the Group management
policies.

Details of the management and financing policies are included within the Carestream Dental Alpha Limited
financial statemants.

Reseaarch and development activities

We continue to invest in both the development of our existing products and in new softwere packages and
services targeted at the dental industry. The directors regard the investment as essential in order to maintain
the Company's position in the dental practice management market and to provide business growth.
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CARESTREAM DENTAL LIMITED

DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

Directors’ responsibiiities statement

The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulation.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Undar that law the
direclors have prepared the financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprigsing FRS 102 "The Financial Reporting
Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of ireland™, and applicable law). Under company law the directors
must nat approve the financial statements unlass they are salisfied that they give a frue and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company and of the profit or ings of the Company for that year. In preparing the financial
statements, the directers are required to.

. select suitable accounting policies and then apply tham consistently;
. make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

» state whether applicable United Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 102, have been
followed, subject to any material departures disciosed and explained in the financial statements; and

- prepare the financial statements on the going concem basis untess it is inappropriate to prasume that the
Company will continue in business.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient ta show and explain
the Company's fransactions and disclose with reagonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
Company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006.

They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence for taking reasonable steps
for the prevention and detection of fraud and other iregularities.

Directors' confirmations
Each of the persons who are directors at the time when this Directors' Repoit is approved has confirmed that:

. so far as the director is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Company's auditors are
unaware; and

. the director has taken all the steps that ought to have baen taken as a director in order to be aware of any
relevant audit information and to establish that the Company’s auditors are aware of that information.

Subsequent events

Refer to note 24 of the financial statements for details of subsequent events.

Independont auditors

Under section 487(2) of the Companies Act 2006, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP will be deemed to have been
reappointed as audilors 28 days after these financial statements were sent to mambers or 28 days after the
latest date prescribed for filing the financial statements with the registrar, whichever is earfier

This repost was approved by the board and signed on its hehalf by:

iz S
—
A Kinson
Director

Date: 3 July 2020
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CARESTREAM DENTAL LIMITED

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS® REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF CARESTREAM DENTAL LIMITED

Report on the andit of the financial statements
Opinion
In our opinion, Carestream Dental Limited's financial statements:

. give a true and fair view of the state of the Company’s affairs as at 31 December 2019 and of its profit for the
year then ended;

. have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice
(United Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 102 “The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in
the UK and Republic of Ireland”, and applicable law); and

. have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

‘We have audited the financial statements, induded within the Annual Report and Finandial Statements, which comprise:
the Balance Sheet as at 31 December 2019; the Statement of Comprehensive Income and the Statement of Changes in
Equity for the year then ended; and the notes to the financial statements, which include a description of the significant
accounting policies,

Bagsis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) ("ISAs (UK)") and applicable law.,
Our responsibilities under 1SAs (UK) are further described in the Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial

statemaents section of our report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We remained independent of the Company in accordanee with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements in the UK, which includes the FRC's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
regponsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

Conclusions relating to going coneern

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which ISAs (UK) require us to repart to you
where:

. the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is niot
appropriate; or

. the directors have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified materiat uncertainties that may cast
gignificant douhit about the Company’s ability to cortinue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting for a
period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

However, because not all future events or eonditions can be predicted, this statement ia not a guarantee as to the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

Reporting on other information

The other information comprises all of the information in the Anmnal Report other than the financial statemnents and our
auditors’ report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information, Qur cpinion on the financial statements
does not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion or, except to the extent atherwise
explicitly stated in this report, any form of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statemnents, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
congsider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial staternents or our knowledge obtained
in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify an apparent material inconsistency or material
misstatement, we are required to perform procedures to conclude whether there is & material misstatement of the financial
statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report
based on these responsibilities.
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CARESTREAM DENTAL LIMITED

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REFORT TO THE MEMBERS OF CARESTREAM DENTAL LIMITED
{CONTINUED)

With respect io the Strategic Report and Directors” Report, we also considered whether the disclosures required by the UK
Companies Act 2006 have been included.

Based on the responsibilities deseribed above and our work undertaken in the course of the audit, ISAs (UK) require us also
to report certain opinions and matters as described below.

Strategic Report and Directors’ Report

In our ppinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, the information given in the Strategic Report and
Directors’ Report for the yesr ended 31 December 2019 is consistent with the financial statements and has been prepared in
aceordance with applicable legal requirements.

In light of the knowledge and understanding of the company and ils environment obtained in the course of the audit, we did
not identify any material misstatements in the Strategic Report and Directors’ Report.

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the andit
Responsibilities of the directors _for the finanicial staterments

As explained more fully in the Directors' responsibilities statement set out on page 4, the directors are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the applicable framework and for belng satisfied that they give a
true and fair view, The directors are also responsible for such internal control as they determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of aceounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Company or 10 cease operations, or have npo realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to abtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as 8 whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to frand or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarentee that an audit conducted in accordance with 1SAs (UK) will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists, Misstatements can arise from frand or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the bagis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the FRC's website at:
www fre.org.uk/auditorsresponeibilities. This description forms part of our auditors’ report.

Use of this report

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the Company’s members as a body in accordance
with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving these cpinions, accept
of assume responsibility far any ather purpase or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it
may come save where expressly agreed by cur prior consent In writing.
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CARESTREAM DENTAL LIMITED

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF CARESTREAM DENTAL LIMITED
{CONTINUED)

Other required reporting
Companies Act 2006 exception reporting

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:
. we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or

. adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Company, or returns adequate for our audit have not
been received from branches not visited by us; or

. certain disclosures of directors' remuneration specified by law are not made; or
. the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns,
‘We have no exceptions to report arising from this responasibility.

Fong %Mw

Fong Choo Johnson (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London

3 July 2020
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CARESTREAM DENTAL LIMITED

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

Note
Tumover 4
Cost of sales

Gross profit
Administrative expenses

Operating profit
Interast receivable and similar income

Profit before taxation
Tax on profit 10

Profit for the financlal year

Total comprehensive income for the financlal ysar

The notes on pages 11 to 28 form part of these financial statements.

2018 2018
£ £
14,510,533 15,189,084
{6,721,464) (6,678,169)
7,789,089 8511815
{4,400,927)  {4,238,308)
3,388,142 4,273,509
- 83
3,388,142 4273572
(805,420) 256,630
2,782,722 4,530,202
2,782,722 4,530,202
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GCARESTREAM DENTAL LIMTED
REGISTERED NUMBER: 03950696

BALANCE SHEET

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019

Fixed assets

Intangible assets
Tangible assels

Curront assets
Stocks

Debtors
Cash at bank and in hand

Creditors. amounts falling dus within one

year

Nat ctrrent assets

Total aasets less current liabilities

Provislons for liabilities
Deferred taxation

Net aasets

Capital and resarves

Called up share capitai
Profit and loss account

Total shareholders’ funds

Note

11
12

13
14
15

16

17

18
19

2019
£
319,980
319,980
224,334
13,108,410
159,441
13,492,186
(2,787.8493)
10,704,492
11,024 472
11,024,472
E . ——
1,500,000
9,524,472
11,024,472

267,773
9,954,596
549,047

10,771,416

(2,737.271)

2018

957
239,399

240,356

8,034,145

8,274,501

(32,751

8,241,760

1,500,000
8,741,750

8,241,750

—

The financial statements on pages 8 to 26 were approved and authorised for issua by the board and were

signed on its behaif by:

A Kinson
Director

Date: 3 July 2020

The notes on pages 11 ta 26 form part of these financial statements.
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CARESTREAM DENTAL LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES N EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

At 1 January 2018

Comprehensive income for the financial year
Profit for the financial year

Total comprehensive income for the financial year

At 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2018

Comprehensive income for the financial year
Profit for the financial year

Total comprehensive income for the financial year

At 31 December 2019

Total

Catled up Profit and shareholders'
share capital loss account funds
E E £

1,300,000 2,211,548 3,711,548

- 4,530,202 4,530,202

- 4,530,202 4,530,202

1,500,000 8,741,750 8,241,750

- 2,782,722 2,782,722

- 2,782,722 2,782,722

1,500,000 9,524,472 11,024,472

The notes on pages 11 10 26 form part of these financial statements.
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CARESTREAM DENTAL LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

1.

Genora! information

Carestream Dental Limited {the "Company™) is a private company, limited by shares, domiciied and
incorporated in England. The Company's registered office is 25 Canada Sguare, Level 37, London, E14
5LQ and the registered number is 03950606,

The principal activities of the Company are the development, sale and support of dental software
products and the sale and support of hardware equipment, including digital imaging products.

Accounting policies

21

22

23

Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, under the historical cost
convention and in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 102, the Financial Reporting
Standard applicable In the UK and the Republic of Ireland and the Companies Act 2006 as
applicable to companies uging FRS 102,

The preparation of financial statements in compliance with FRS 102 requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. |t also requires management to exercise judgement in applying the
Company's accounting policies (see note 3).

The following principal accounting policies have heen applied consistantly throughout the year:
Going concern

The Company meets its day-to-day working capital requirements through its cash reserves and
borrowings. The directors have a reasonable axpectation that the Company has adequate resources
to confinue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. The Company therefore continues to
adopt the going concem basis in preparing its financial statements.

Financial reporting standard 102 - reduced diaclosure exemptions

The Company has taken advantage of the following disclosure exemplions In preparing these
financial statements, as permitted by the FRS 102 "The Financial Raporting Standard applicable in
the UK and Republic of Ireland™:

. the requirements of Section 4 Statement of Financial Position paragraph 4.12(a)(iv);
. the requiremnents of Section 7 Statement of Cash Flows;
. the requirements of Sectfon 3 Financial Statement Prasentation paragraph 3.17(d);

. the requirements of Section 11 Financial Instruments paragraphs 11.42, 11.44 to 11.45,
11.47, 11.48¢@)0), 11.48(a)(v), 11.48(b) and 11.48(c);

. the requirements of Section 12 Other Firancial Instruments paragraphs 12.26 to 12.27,
12.29{a), 12.29(b) and 12.20A;

- the requirements of Section 33 Related Party Disclosures paragraph 33.7.
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CARESTREAM DENTAL LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

Accounting policies (continuad)

24

25

Tumover

Tumover is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Company and the turnover can be reliably measured. Tumover is measured ae the fair value of the
considaration receivad or receivable, excluding discourts, rebates, value added tax and other sales
taxes. The following criteria must also be met before tumover Is recognised:

Sagle of goods
Turnover from the sale of goods is recognised when all of the following conditions are satisfiad:

. the Company has transferred the significant risks and rewards of ownership to the buyer;

. tha Company relains neither continuing managerial invoivement to the degree usually
associated with ownership nor effective conirol over the goods sold;

. the amount of turnover can be measured reliably;
. it is probable that the Company will receive the consideration due under the transaction; and
- the cosis incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably.

Rendering of services

Tumover from a contract to provide services is recognised in tha year in which the services are
provided in accordance with the stage of completion of the contract when all of the following
conditions are satisfied:

. the amount of tumover can be measured reliably;
. it is probable that the Company will recaive the consideration due under the contract,

. the stage of completion of the contract at the end of the reporting year can be measured
refiably; and

. the costs incured and the costs to complete the contract can be measured reliably.
intangible aasets

Intangible assetls are initially recognised at cost. Afer recognition, under the cost mode), intangible
assets are measured at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment
losses.

All imangible assets are considered to have a finite useful life. If a reliable estimate of the useful life
cannot be made, the useful life shall not exceed ten years.

The estimated useful lives range as follows;

Computer software - 3  years straight line
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CARESTREAM DENTAL LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

Accounting policies (continued)

28

2.7

Tangible assets

Tangible asseis under the cost mode! are stated at higlorical cost less accumulated depreciation
and any accumulated impairment lossas. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to bringing the asset i¢ the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of
aparating in the manner intended by managamant.

Depreciation is charged so as to allocate the cost of assets less their rasidual value over their
estimated useful lives.

The estimated useful lives range as follows:

Short-term leasehold preperty - 5§ years straight line
Fixtures and fittings - 3 vyears straight line
Computer equipment - 3 years straight line

The assets’ residual values, ussful lives and depreciation methods are reviewed, and adjusted
prospectively if appropriate, or if there is an indication of a significant change since the last reporting
date.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with the carmying amount
and are recognised in the Statement of Comprehansive Income.
Development costs

Rasgearch and development costs are expensad to the Statement of Comprehensive Income as they
do not meet the criteria for capitalisation under FRS 102.

Stocks

Stocks are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value, being the estimated salling price less
cosls 1o complete and sall. Cost is basad on the cost of purchase on a first in, first out basis Work
in progress and finished goods include fabour and attributable overheads.

At each Balance Sheet date, stocks are assessed for impairment. if stock is impaired, the carrying
amount is reduced to ite selling price less costs 1o complete and sell. The impainment loss is
recognised immediately in the Siatement of Comprahensive Income.

Debtors
Short term debtors are measured at transaction price, less any impalrment. Loans receivable are

measured initially at fair value, net of transaction costs, and are measured subsequently at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, leaa any impairment.

2.10 Cash and cash equivalenis

Cash is represented by cash in hand and deposits with financial institutions repayable without
penalty on notice of not more than 24 hours. Cash equivalents are highly Hquid investments that
mature in ho more than three months from the date of acquisition and that are readily convertinie to
known amounts of cash with insignificant risk of change in value.
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CARESTREAM DENTAL LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

Accounting policles {continued)

2.11 Financial Instruments

The Company only enters into basic financial instrument transactions that result in the recognition of
financial assets and liabilities like trade and other debtors and creditors, loans from banks and other
third parties, loans to related parties and invastments in ordinasy shares.

Debt instruments (other than those wholly repayable or receivable within one year), including foans
and other accounts receivable and payable, are initially measured at present valuve of the future cash
flows and subsequently at amortised cost using the effectiva interest mathod. Debt instruments that
are payable or receivable within one year, typically trade debtors and creditors, are measured,
initially and subsequently, at the undiscounted amount of the cash or other consideration expected
to be paid or received. However, if the arrangements of a short-term instrument constitute a
financing transaction, like the payment of a trade debt deferred beyond normal business terms or in
case of an out-right short-term loan that is not at market rate, the financial asset or liability is
measured, initially at the present value of future cash flows discounted at a market rate of interest
for a similar debt instrument and subsequently at amortised cost.

Financial assets that are measured at cost and amortised cost are assessed at the end of each
reporting year for objective evidence of impainment. If objective evidence of impairment is found, an
impairment loss is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive (ncome.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, the impairment loss is measured as the diflerence
between an assef's garrying amount and the present value of estimated cash flows discounted at the
asset's original effective interest rate. If a financial asset has a variable interest rate, the discount
rate for measuring any impairment less is the current effective interest rate determined under the
contract.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the Balance Sheet when
there is an anforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and there Is an intention to seitle on a
net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultanacusly.

2.12 Creditors

Short term creditors are measured at the transaction price. Other financial liabilities, inciuding bank
loans, are measured initially at fair value, net of transaction costs, and are measured subsaquently
at amortised cost using the affective interest mathod.
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CARESTREAM DENTAL LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3% DECEMBER 2019

Accounting policies (continued)

2.13 Foreign currency transiation

Functional and presentation currency
The Company's functional and presentational currency is GBP.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are transiated into the functionsl currency using the spot exchange
rates at the dates of the transactions.

At each year end foreign currency monetary items are translated using the closing rate. Non-
monetary #ems measured at historical cost are translated using the axchange rate at the date of the
transaction and non-monetary items measured at fair value are measured using the exchange rate
when fair value was determined.

Foreign exchange gains and iosses resuting from the settlement of transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and Eabilities denominated in foreign
currendies are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income except when deferred in
other comprehensive income as qualifying cash flow hedges.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings and cash and cash equivalenis are
presented in the Statement of Comprehensive Income within ‘interest receivable and similar income’
or 'interest payable and similar expenses'. All other foreign exchange gains and losses are
presented in the Statement of Comprehensive income within ‘administrative expenses’.

2.14 Operating lnases: the Company as lessee

Rentals paid under opereting leases are charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Income on a
straight line basis over the lease term.

2.15 Panslons

Definad contribution pension plan

The Company operaies a defined contribution plan for its emplicyees. A dafined contribution planis a
pension plan under which the Company pays fixed contributions into a separate entity. Once the
contributions have been paid the Company has no further payment obligations.

The contributions are recognised as an expense in the Statement of Comprehensive income when
they fall due. Amounts not pald are shown in accruals as a liabflity in the Balance Sheet. The assets
of the plan are held separatety from the Company in independently administered funds.

2.16 Interest income

Interest income is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income using the effective interest
maethod.
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CARESTREAM DENTAL LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

2.

Accounting policies {continued)

2.47 Provisions for liabilities

Provisions are mada where an event has taken place that gives the Company a legal of constructive
obiigation that probably requires settlemant by a transfer of economic benefit, and a relizble estimate
can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Provisions are charged as an expanse to the Statement of Comprehensive Income in the year that
the Gompany becomes aware of the obligation, and are measured at the best estimate at the
Balance Sheet date of the expenditure required to settle the obligation, taking into account relevant
iisks and uncertainties.

When paymenis are eventually made, they are charged to the provision carried in the Balance
Shest.

2.18 Current and deferrad taxation

The tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income, except that a charge atiributable to an item of income and
axpense recognised as other comprahensive income or to an item recognised directly in equity is
also racognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of tax rates and laws that have been
enacted or substaniively enacted by the Balance Sheet date in the countiies where the Company
operates and generates income.

Deferred tax balances are recognised i respect of all timing differences that have orniginated but not
reversed by the Balance Sheet date, except that:

. The recognition of deferred tax assets is limited to the extent that it is probable that they will
be recoverad against the reversal of deferred tax liabilities or other future taxable profits; and

. Any deferred tax balances are reversed if and whan all conditions for retaining associated tax
aliowances have been mei.

Deferred tax balances are not recognised in respect of permanent differences except in respect of
business combinations, when deferred lax is recognised on the differences between the fair values
of assets acquired and the future tax deduciions avallable for them and the differences between the
fair values of iiabilities acquired and the amount that will be assessed for tax. Deferred fax is
determined using tax rates and laws that have been enacied or substantivaly enactad by the
Balance Sheet date.
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CARESTREAM DENTAL LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

3

Judgements in applying accounting policies and key sources of estimation uncertainty

Preparation of the financial statements requires management to make significant judgements and
estimates.

The items in the financial statements where these judgments and estimates have been made include:
3.1 Critical management jJudgement in applying accounting policies

in the process of applying the Company's accounting policies, management has made no judgements
which they consider to be critical in terms of the effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements.

3.2 Key sourcas of estimation

The following are the key assumptions concemning the fulure, and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting year, that have a significant risk of causing a matenal adjustment
{o the carrying amounts of assets and liabilties within the next reporting year:

(a) Determining net realisable value of inventories

in determining the net realisable value of inventories, management takes info account the most reliable
evidence available at the dates the estimatas are made. Evidence may change after the reporting year
and hence this could lead to a different assessment.

(b) Estimating useful kives of properly, plant and equipment

The Company estimates the useful flives of property, plant and equipment based on the period over which
the assets are expected to be available for use. The astimated useful lives of property, plant and
equipment are reviewed periodically and are updated If expectations differ from previous estimates due to
physical wear and tear, technical or comeercial obsolescence and legal or other kmits on the use of the
assets. Based on management's assessment as at 31 Decomber 2019, there is no change in estimated
useful lives of those assets in use during the year. Actual results, however, may vary due to changes In
estimates brought about by changes in factors mentioned above.

Turnover

The whate of the tumover is atiributable to the development, sale and support of dental software products
and the sale and support of hardware equipment, including digital imaging products.

Analysis of tumover by country of destination:

2019 2018

£ £

United Kingdom 14,148,377 15,018,219
Rest of the world 381,156 171,765

14,510,633 15,180,984
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CARESTREAM DENTAL LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

Operating profit
The operating profit /s stated after charging/{crediting):

Research & development charged as an expsnsa
Depraciation of tangible assets - note 12
Amortisation of intangible assets - note 11
Exchange differences

Operating lease rentais

Defined confribution pension cost

Auditors’ remunerstion

Fees payable to the Company's auditors for the audit of the Company's
annugl financiai statements

Fees payable to the Company's auditors in respect of:

All gther services

2019 2018

£ £
1,184,974 1,241,783
211,007 165,063
887 1,103
204,381 (21,309)
167,741 149,126
238,982 235467
2019 2018

£ £
50,129 48,600
2,000 1,800
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CARESTREAM DENTAL LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

7.

Employees and directors
Staff costs, including directors’ remuneration, were as follows:

2019 2018
£ £
Wages and salaries 5,166,034 4,787,642
Sogial security costs 564,832 529,971
Other pension costs 238,962 235,487
5,968,828 5,553,080

TFhe average monthly number of employees, including the directors, during the year was as follows:
2019 2018
Number Number
Administration 14 17
Selfing and Distribution 88 82
Production 23 24
138 123
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CARESTREAM DENTAL LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

B,

Directors’ remuneration

2049 2018
£ £
Salary, bonus and benefits 442618 452,043

Cefined benefit contributions 15,070 31,768

457,888 483.811

During the year retirement benefits were accruing to 3 directors (2018: 3) in respect of defined
contribution pension scheme.

The remunerstion of J Guinn is paid by Carestream Dental Technology Topco Limited, a subsidiary
incorperated in the U.K, and recharged to Carestream Dental LLC, a subsidiary incorporated in Georgia
USA. J Guinn provides services to the Company and to a number of subsidiaries in the Group. Her
remuneration is deemed to be atiributable to her servicas provided to the subsidiaries and accordingly,
the above details include her remuneration.

The remuneration of A Kinson is paid by Carestream Dental Technology Topco Limited, a subsidiary
incorporated in the UK. A Kinson provides services 1o the Company and to a number of subsidiartes in
the Group. Her remuneration is deemed to be attributabie to her services provided lo the subsidiaries and
accordingly, the above details include her remuneration.

The remuneration of R Schmidt is paid by Carestream Dental Limited and recharged to Carestream
Dental Technology Topeo Limited, a subsidiary incorporated in the U.K. Accordingly, the above details
include his remuneration.

Highest paid director
2018 2018
£ £
Salasy, bonus and benefits 199,765 219,039
Defined benefit contributions 2,449 16,674

202,214 235,713

Interest receivable and similar incoms

2019 2018
£ E
Bank interest receivable - 63
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CARESTREAM DENTAL LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

10.

Tax on profit

2019 2018

£ £

Corporation tax
Current tax on profits for the financia! year 669,338 -
Adjustmants In reapect of prior years - (286,270)
Total current tax 669,338 (286,270)
Deferred tax
Adjustments in respect of prior year - note 17 {38,321y 29,640
Origination and reversal of timing differences (25,561) -
Total deferred tax {63.,918) 29,640
Total tax charge/{credit) for the financlal year 605,420 (256,630)

Factors affecting tax charge/(credit) for the year

The tax assessed for the year is lower than (2018, lower than) the standard rate of corporation tax in the
UK of 19.00% (2018: 19.00%). The differences are explained below:

20498 2018
£ £
Profit before taxation 3,388,142 4,273,572
Profit before taxation multiplied by standard rale of corporation tax in the UK
of 19.00% (2018: 19.00%) 643,747 811,979
Effacts of:
Adjustments in respact of prior years - deferred tax {38,327) 29,840
Adjustments in respect of prior years - cwrrent tax - {286,270)
Group relief - (811,979)
Total tax charge/{credit) for the financial year 605,420 (256,630)

Factors that may affect future tax charges

Changes ta the UK Corporation tax rates weare substantively anacted on 7 September 2016 to reduce the
main rate of Corporation tax to 17% from 1 April 2020. Subsequent to the balance sheet date, a further
change was substantively enacted on 17 March 2020 to maintain the rate at 19%.
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CARESTREAM DENTAL LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

1.

Intangible assets

Cost
At 1 January 2019

At 31 December 2019
Accumulated amortisation

At 1 January 2019
Charge for the year

At 31 December 2019

Net book value

At 31 December 2019

At 31 December 2018

Computer
software

271,717

274,717

270,760
957

21,717

957
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CARESTREAM DENTAL LIMITED

NCOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

12.

13,

Tangible aseets

Cost

At 1 January 2019
Additions
Disposals

At 31 Dacember 2019
Accumuiated depreciation
At 1 January 2019

Charge for the year
Disposals

At 31 December 2019

Neot book value
At 31 December 2019

At 31 December 2018

Stocks

Finished goods and goods for resale

Short-term
leasehold Fixtures and Computar
property fittings  equipment Total
£ £ £
309,374 202,670 547,738 1,149,782
- - 313,026 313,026
- (88,469) (255,852) (341,321)
309,374 207,201 604,912 1,121,487
151,926 290,808 467,649 910,383
87,375 1,862 121,860 211,097
- {85,4589) {234,504} (349,973)
239,301 207,201 385,005 801,507
70,073 - 249,907 319,980
157,448 1,862 80,089 239,399
2019 2018
£ £
224,334 267,773

Stack recognised in cost of sales during the year as an expense was £2.413,516 (2018: £2,681,485).

An Impairment Joss of £25,070 (2018: £4 937) was recognised in cost of sales against stock during the

year due to slow-moving and obsolete stock.
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CARESTREAM DENTAL LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

14,

15.

16.

Debtors

2019 2018
£ E
Trade debtors 1,652,703 2,120,045
Amounts owed by group underiakings 10,294,515 6,855,148
Qther debtors 393,527 230,863
Tax recoverabie 514 461 582,174

Deferred taxation 31,167 -
Prepayments and accrued Income 222,037 156,665
13,108,410 9,954,596

Amounts owed by group underiakings are unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand with no

date for repayment.

Cash at bank and in hand

2019 2018
£ £
Cash at bank and in hand 159,441 549,047
——

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
2019 2018
£ £
Trade creditors 482,901 517,543
Amounts owed to group undertakings 182,087 297,232
Other taxation and social security 803,803 321,410
Accruals and defefred income 1,318,022 1,601,086
2,787,693 2,737,271

Amounts owed to group undertakings are unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand with no date

for repayment.
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CARESTREAM DENTAL LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019
17. Deferred taxation

At baginning of year
Charged to Statement of Comprehensive Income - note 10

At end of year

The deferred taxation bafance is made up as follows:

Accelerated capital alowances
Short tarm timing differences

18. Called up share capital

Allotted, called up and fully pald

1,500,000 (2018: 1,500,000) Ordinary shares of £1 (2018: £1) each

2019

£

{32,764)

83,918

31,167

T

2019 2018

£ £
(48,395) (49,705)
79,562 16,954
31,167 (32,751)
2019 2018

£ £
1,500,000 1,500,000

The Ordinary shareholders carry full voting rights as wek as rights 1o dividend distribution and resolution

for winding up of the Company.

19. Reserves

Profit and loes account

The profit and loss account includes all current and prior year retained profits and losses.

20. Pension commitments

The Company operates a defined contribution pension scheme. The assets of the scheme are hald
separataly from those of the Company in an independentfy administered fund. The pension cost charge
represents contributions paid by the Company to the fund and amount to £238 962 (2018: £235,467).

Page 25



CARESTREAM DENTAL LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

21.

22.

23.

Commitments under operating leases

At 31 December the Company had future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases as follows:

2019 2018

£ £

Not later than 1 year 189,579 164,260
Later than 1 year and not tater than 5 years 32,287 189,290

221,866 353,550

i — ]

Related party transactions

As a wholly owned subsidiary of Carestream Dentai Alpha Limited the Company has taken advantage of
the exemption under FRS 102 Section 33 from disclosing related party transactions with other wholly
owned group entities.

Ultimate parent undertaking and controlling party

The Company's immediate parent company is Carestream Dental Technology Parent Limited, a company
incorporated in the United Kingdom. Carestream Dental Alpha Limited is the parent of the smallest and
largest group to consolidate these financial statements and these consolidated financial stalements can
be obtained from 25 Canada Square, Leve! 37, London, E14 5LQ.

The Company's ultimate parent underfaking is Carestream Dental Alpha Limited, a company
incorporated in the Cayman Islands. The Company's ultimate controlling party is CD&R Cobra Holdings,
LP

Subsequent events

Subsequent to year end, a novel strain of coronavirus named COVID-19 caused a worldwide pandemic
disrupting supply chains and sales across a range of industries, including the dental industry. Starting in
early March, the COVID-19 outbreak has resutted in woridwide temporary dentist office dosuwres as
mandated by a variety of health and govemment officials. These recent developments have resulted in a
material amount of decreased net sales, profitability, and operaling cash fiows beginning in March 2020.
The Company's management expects these reduced levels of performance to continue in the near term
primarily due to delays in large scale dental equipment purchases and reduced service revenues
resulling from the dental office closures. In response, the wider Carestream Dental Group has
tempararily closed its primary manufactucing facility in France, introduced temporary employee furtoughs
for the second quarter of 2020, and signHicantly reduced other operating expenses such as travel, hiring
new staff and third-party contractor spending.

The extent of the impact of COVID-19 on the Companys operational and financial performance will
depend on certain developments, including the duration and spread of the outbreak, impact on the
Company's customers, employees and vendors, Other risks, depending on the duration and spread of
the outbreak, include adverse impacis 1o receivable credit losses. While the disruption is currently
expected to be temporary, there is considerable uncertainty around the duration. Therefore, while the
Company expects this matter to negatively impact financial performance in 2020 and possibly beyond,
the related financial impact and duration cannot be reasonably estimated at this time.
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Report to Independent Auditors

To the Board of Directors of
Carestream Dental Alpha Limited

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Carestream Dental Alpha
Limited and Subsidiaries, which comprise the consolidated balance shests as of December 31, 2019 and
2018 and the related consolidated statements of operations, comprehensive loss, shareholders’ equity
and cash flows for the years then ended.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America;
this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal centrol relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements based on our audits.
We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the Company's
preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the consolidated financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, 1075 Peachtree Street, Suite 2600, Atlanta, GA 30309
T: (678) 419 1000, F: (678) 419 1239, www.pwc.com/us
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Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in ali material
respects, the financial position of Carestream Dental Alpha Limited and Subsidiaries as of December 31,
2019 and 2018, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for the years then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Emphasis of Mafter

As discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated financiat statements, the Company changed the manner in
which it accounts for revenue in 2019. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Atlanta, Georgia
June 10, 2020



Carestream Dental Alpha Limited
Consolidated Balance Sheets
December 31, 2019 and 2018

{in thousands of dollars)

Assets

Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, net
Inventories, net
Other current assets

Total current assets

Property, plant and equipment, net
Goodwill

Deferred close asset, net
Intangible assets, net

Other long-term assets, net
Deferred income tax asset

Total assets

Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity
Current liabilities
Trade accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Contract liabilities
Current portion of long-term debt
Current portion of pension liability

Total current liabilities
Long-term debt, less current portion
Other long-term liabilities

Deferred income tax liabilities
Pension

Total liabilities
Commitments and contingencies

Shareholders' equity
Contributed capital
Additional paid in capital
Accumulated deficit
Accumulated other comprehensive loss

Total shareholders' equity
Total liabilities and shareholders' equity

2019 2018
26,880 % 23,310
67,086 71,431
29,233 24,924
17,095 23,700

140,294 143,365
24,857 28,347
482,738 472,381
- 9,012
237,679 280,638
3,182 5,760
3,608 3,340
892,358 $ 942843
24,014 % 33,393
48,720 46,467
31,802 44,567
1,420 1,565
687 415
106,643 126,407
516,641 531,054
18,941 5,485
23,942 33,853
17,569 18,655
683,736 715,454
312,447 312,447
10,443 7,747
(99,786) (81,266)
(14,482) (11,509)
208,622 227,389
892,358 $ 942,843

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consclidated financial statements.
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Carestream Dental Alpha Limited
Consolidated Statements of Operations
Years Ended December 31, 2019 and 2018

(in thousands of dollars)

Net sales
Cost of goods sold

Gross profit

Selling, general and administrative expenses
Amortization of intangibles

Transaction costs

Research and development costs

Operating income {loss)

interest expense, net
Other (income} loss, net

Loss before income taxes
Income tax (benefit) expense
Net loss

2019 2018
416,915 $ 392,001
178,996 173,620
237,919 218,381
137,591 135,080

47,931 47,257
497 4,015
32,316 34,120
19,584 (2,091)
42,258 40,866
(580) 100
(22,004) (43,057)
(3,574) 1,695
(18,520) $ (44,751)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consclidated financial statements.
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Carestream Dental Alpha Limited
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Loss
Years Ended December 31, 2019 and 2018

(in thousands of dollars) 2019 2018
Net loss $ (18,520) $% (44,751)
Other comprehensive {loss) income, net of tax
Foreign currency translation adjustments, net (2,464) (13,425)
Defined benefit pension plan, net (509) 323
Total other comprehensive loss, net of tax (2,973) (13,102}
Comprehensive loss $ (21,493) % (57,853)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

5



Carestream Dental Alpha Limited
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity
Years Ended December 31, 2019 and 2018

Accumulated
Additional Other Total
Contributed Paid in Comprehenslve Accumulated Shareholders’
{in thousands of dollars) Capital Capital Income (Loss) Deficit Equity
Balances at December 31, 2017 $ 312,447 & - § 1,593 § (36,515) § 277,525
Net loss - - - (44,751) (44,751)
Foreign currency translation adjustment, net of tax expense of $0 - - {13,425) - (13,425)
Defined benefit plan, net of tax expense of $196 - - 323 323
Direclor and employee stock purchases - 4,855 - - 4,855
Stock compensation expeanse - 2.862 - - 2,862
Balances at Decomber 31, 2018 312,447 7,717 {11,509) (81,266} 227,389
Net loss - - - (18,520} {18,520)
Fareign currency translation adjustrent, net of tax expense of $0 - - (2.464) - {2,464)
Defined benefit plan, net of tax expense of $153 - - (509) - (508)
Director and employee stock purchases - 440 - - 440
Stock compensation expense - 2,286 - - 2,288
Balances at December 31, 2019 3 312,447 & 10,443 § {14,482) § (99,786} $ 208,622

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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Carestream Dental Alpha Limited
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Years Ended December 31, 2019 and 2018

(in thousands of doffars)

Cash flows from operating activities
Net loss

Adjustments to reconcile net loss to cash provided by
{used in) by operating activities
Depreciation
Amortization of intangibles
Amortization of debt issuance costs
Allowance for doubtful accounts
Provision for excess and obsolete inventory
Loss on the disposal of property, plant and equipment
Foreigh currency exchange loss
Stock compensation expense
Deferred income taxes
Change in operating assets and liabilities, net of acquired amounts
Accounts recevable, net
{inventories, net
Other current assets
Trade accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Contract liabilities
Other

Toetal adjustments
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Cash (paid) received from operaticns of deferred close jurisdictions
Purchases of property, plant and equipment
Purchase of Swissmeda, net of cash acquired
Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Repayment of long-term debt
Borrowings on revolving credit facility
Repayment of revolving credit facdity
Equity contribution from indirect parent
Bank overdraft

Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents
Beginning of year
End of year

Supplemental disclosures

Cash paid for interest

Cash paid for income taxes

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment in accounts payable and accruals
Leasehold improvements acquired through lessor incentives

Net assets acquired through conveyance of deferred

close jurisdictions

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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2019 2018
(18,520) § (44,751}
9,646 5,783
47,931 47,257
2,585 2,464
120 257
727 27)
79
537 283
2,286 2,862
(10,534) {4.715)
5,930 (13,803)
{4,710) {3,200)
6,557 505
(9,184) 1,824
179 (32.823)
{1,503) 10,130
1,531 889
52,177 17,686
33,657 (27.065)
(622) 7.639
(5.527) (13.291)
{6,633) -
(12,782) {5,652)
(3,750) {3,750)
33,000 20,000
(46,000) {7,000)
440 4,855
- {1.297)
(16,310) 12,808
(995) (468)
3,570 (20,377)
23,310 43,687
26880 $ 23,310
33,709 $ 38,561
3,288 3,909
216 1,102
- 3,726
7,170 17,341



Carestream Dental Alpha Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2019 and 2018

{in thousands of dollars except share prices)

1.

Introduction and Background

Carestream Dental Alpha Limited (“Dental” or “the Company”) sells digital products, including, intra-
oral cameras and imaging eguipment, intra-orai x-ray generators, extra-oral imaging systems,
CAD/CAM restorations, practice management software products and equipment aftermarket
services. Dental's products are manufactured in China and France and are marketed and sold
globally.

Dental is a Cayman Island legal entity formed on April 18, 2017 by an affiliate of Clayton Dubilier &
Rice, LLC ("CD&R") to acquire the dental digital business of Carestream Health, Inc. (*Health").
CD&R owns 75% of the Company and 25% is owned by HCare CSD Holidings Lid. (“HCare"),
which is owned by Hillhouse Fund Il and CareCapital. CD&R and HCare represent the owners of
the Company as it relates to equity contributions and control of the business.

Dental, a private limited company incorporated under the laws of the Cayman Islands, issued
50,000 ordinary shares of $1 in the capitalization of the Company to Carestream Dental Alpha
Limited LP.

The Company entered into a stock and asset purchase agreement on April 7, 2017 with Health,
whereby the dental business was acquired through a combination of stock acquisitions and asset
acquisitions, and an assumption by the Company of certain related liabilities, in each case as of the
transaction date, September 1, 2017.

As part of the acquisition of Dental, the transfer of the assets and assumption of the iiabilities of the
business in certain jurisdictions anticipated in the stock and asset purchase agreement did not
close as of the transaction date. In many of these jurisdictions, the business was required to
possess certain government regulatory approvals, permits or licenses in order to legally own and
aperate the business and its assets. To ensure the proper transfer of ownership, the closing of the
transaction in these jurisdictions was deferred. These jurisdictions are referred to as "deferred
closing” jurisdictions. Separate transitional agreements for the deferred closing jurisdictions were
put in place to define the roles and obligations of Dental and Health, untii the transaction was able
to close and transfer to the Company. As of September 1, 2017, Dental became entitled to the net
economic benefit generated through the operations in these deferred closing jurisdictions, which
was settled in cash payments each month. As of March 1, 2019, all deferred closing entities were
closed and legal ownership transferred to the Company.

Significant Accounting Policies

Basis for Presentation of the Consoclidated Financial Statements

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared by management in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States (“U.S. GAAP"), and consolidate all
assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses of the Company and its wholly owned subsidiaries,
majority-owned subsidiaries over which the Company exercises control, and entities in which

the Company has a controlling financial interest or is deemed to be the primary beneficiary. All
material intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated.

The purchase price paid for the deferred close jurisdictions is classified and accounted for under
the “Deposit Method” if the associated consideration paid to Health was refundable, or if the title to
the underlying assets and liabilities of the jurisdictions had not been acquired. For deferred close



Carestream Dental Alpha Limited
Notes to Consclidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2019 and 2018

(in thousands of dollars except share prices)

jurisdictions where assets had been acquired, primarily the customer relationships, a portion of the
consideration paid to Health was recorded as an intangible asset, and the remaining portion was
recorded under the Deposit Method.

Deferred close jurisdictions for which the allocated purchase price was refundable are presented in
the consolidated financial statements in the deferred close asset, net on the Consolidated Balance
Sheets only, representing the initial consideration paid, adjusted for the impact of net economic
benefit of the jurisdictions determined between Health and Dental each reporting pericd. The net
economic benefit represents the profit or loss generated by these deferred close jurisdictions, and
any associated change in working capital. Economic benefit amounts were settled in cash within
30 days of the applicable month to which the activity related.

Deferred close jurisdictions for which the allocated purchase price was not refundable are
presented in the Consolidated Balance Sheets in the deferred close asset, net at their respective
acquisition date estimated fair values, while any change in working capital for such jurisdictions
results in an adjustment to the deferred close asset. The net economic benefit related to profit and
loss of each reporting period for these deferred close jurisdictions with Health is fully included in the
consolidated financial statements in the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure
of contingent assets and liabilities at year end, and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting periods. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Business Combinations

The Company accounts for business combinations using the acquisition method by recognizing all
assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the acquisition date estimated fair values, except as
noted for the deferred close jurisdictions above. Goodwill, as of the acquisition date, is measured
as the excess of consideration transferred over the net of the acquisition date estimated fair values
of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed. While the Company uses its best estimates and
assumptions as part of the purchase price allocation process to accurately value assets acquired
and liabilities assumed at the acquisition date, the Company’s estimates may be subject to revision
following the acquisition date. Certain adjustments to the preliminary estimates of fair values of
the assets and liabilities made subsequent to the acquisition date, but within the measurement
period, which is one year or less, are recorded as adjustments {0 goodwilt. Upon the conciusion of
the measurement pericd, any subsequent adjustments arising from new facts and circumstances
are recorded to the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and highly liguid investments with original maturities of
three months or less at the date of acquisition. Cash equivalents are stated at amortized cost,
which approximates fair value. The Company limits its credit exposure to any one major institution.
The Company had bank overdrafts at December 31, 2019 and 2018 of $0 and $7, respectively,
which represents credit balances in accounts to be funded at a later date and are classified in
accounts payable on the Consoclidated Balance Sheets.
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Foreign Currency

For certain operations outside the U.S., the local currency is the functional currency under ASC
830. The financial statements for these operaticns are transiated into U.S. dollars as follows:
assets and liabilities at year-end exchange rates; income, expenses and cash flows at average
exchange rates; and contributed shareholders’ equity at historical exchange rates. For these
operations, the resulting translation adjustment is recorded as a component of accurmnulated other
comprehensive loss in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Monetary assets and liabilities not in functional currency are re-measured at year-end exchange
rates, while the related revenue, expense, and gain and loss accounts are re-measured at average
exchange rates. Nonmonetary assets and liabilities, and the related revenue, expense, and gain
and loss accounts not in functional currency are re-measured at historical rates. Remeasurement
of the assets and liabilities of these operations are included in net loss in the accompanying
Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Foreign exchange losses arising from transactions denominated in a currency, other than the
functional currency of the entity involved, were $(537) and $(283) for years ended December 31,
2019 and 2018, respectively, and are included in selling, general and administrative expenses in
the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Fair Value Measurements

Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants in the principal or most advantageous market
for the asset or liability. The fair value hierarchy consists of three levels to prioritize the inputs used
in valuations, as defined below:

Level 1 Observable inputs that reflect unadjusted quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities in
active markets.

Level 2 Observable quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets; quoted prices
for identical or similar assets in markets that are not active; and inputs other than quoted
prices included within Level 1.

Level 3 Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

Financial assets and liabilities, including cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts
payable, and accrued liabilities are recorded on the balance sheet at their respective net carrying
values, which approximate fair value due to their short-term nature.

Debt is measured and presented at amortized cost on the Consolidated Balance Sheets. Refer to
Note 10,

The plan assets and benefit obligation of the Defined Benefit plans are subject to fair value
measurement. The plan sponsor performs an analysis of these assets and liabilities on a recurring
basis to assess the nature of the inputs used to determine fair value. Refer to Note 15, Retirement
Plans for information regarding the fair value of pension plan assets and liabilities under the
Defined Benefit plans.
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Concentration of Credit Risk and Significant Customers

Financiat instruments that potentially subject Dental to significant concentrations of credit risk
consist principally of receivables. Such receivables arise from sales to numerous customers in a
variety of markets and geographies around the world. Receivables arising from these sales are
generally not collateralized. The Company performs ongoing credit evaluations of its customers’
financial conditions and maintains reserves for potential credit losses.

There were no customers who represented more than 10% of the Company's total revenue for the
years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively. There was one customer who
represented approximately 10% and 18% of the Company's net trade receivables at December 31,
2019 and 2018, respectively. The Company limits credit risk by minimizing significant credit risk
with any one customer.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value. The cost of Dental's inventories
is determined by the average cost method. The carrying value of inventories are reduced for
excess, obsolete or slow-moving inventories based on changes in customer demand, technology
developments or other economic factors.

Debt Issuance Costs

Debt issuance costs associated with the revolver were $1,047 and $1,440 at December 31, 2019
and 2018, respectively, and are recorded in other long term-assets on the Consclidated Balance
Sheets. These costs are amortized using the straight-line method. Amortization of revolver
issuance costs is included in interest expense, net on the Consolidated Statements of Operations
and was $393 for each of the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018.

Debt issuance costs associated with the term loans are amortized using the effective interest rate
method, over the term of the related debt (Note 10). Debt issuance costs net of amortization were
$13,501 and $15,693 at December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively. Amortization of debt issuance
costs is included in interest expense, net on the Consolidated Statements of Operations and was
$2,192 and $2,071 for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

Property, Plant and Equipment, Net

Property plant and equipment acquired in acquisitions are recorded at the estimated fair value. All
other property, plant and equipment are recorded at cost, net of accumulated depreciation. Dental
calculates depreciation expense using the straight-line method over the assets’ estimated useful
lives, which are as follows:

Years
Machinery and equipment 3-6
Leasehold improvements 7-11

Maintenance and repairs are expensed as incurred. Upon sale or other disposition, the applicable
amounts of asset cost and accumulated depreciation are removed from the accounts and the net
amount, less proceeds from disposal, is recorded in earnings from operations.
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Intangible Assets

Intangible assets are recorded at estimated fair value if acquired in an acquisition, or cost if
acquired otherwise, net of accumulated amortization. Dental calculates amortization expense
using the straight-line method over the assets’ estimated useful lives, which are as follows:

Years
Customer relationships 6-12
Trademarks/tradenames 3-20
Developed technology 4-9

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

Dental reviews the carrying value of long-lived assets, other than goodwill, for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying value may not be recoverable.
Dental assesses the recoverability of the carrying value of long-lived assets by first grouping its
long-lived assets with other assets and liabilities at the lowest level for which identifiable cash flows
are largely independent of the cash flows of other assets and liabilities (the “asset group”) and,
secondly, by estimating the undiscounted future cash flows directly associated with and which are
expected to arise from the use of, and eventual disposition of, such asset group.

If the carrying value of the asset group exceeds the estimated undiscounted cash flows, Dental
records an impairment charge to the extent the carrying value of the long-lived asset exceeds its
fair value. Dental determines fair value through quoted market prices in active markets or, if
quoted market prices are unavailable, through the performance of internal analyses of discounted
cash flows or external appraisals.

In connection with the assessment of recoverability of long-lived assets and ongoing strategic
review of the business and operations, Dental continually reviews the remaining useful lives of its
long-lived assets. If this review indicates the remaining useful life of a long-lived asset has been
reduced, Dental wilt adjust the depreciation on that asset to facilitate full cost recovery over its
revised estimated remaining useful life.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of purchase price over the estimated fair value of net assets
acquired. Goodwill is not amortized but is assessed for impairment each year at October 1 and
when events or circumstances change in a way te indicate there has been a potential decline in the
estimated fair value of a reporting unit. Dental has the option to perform a qualitative assessment
to determine if it is more likely than not the estimated fair value of a reporting unit has declined
below carrying value. This assessment considers various financial, macroeconomic, industry, and
reporting unit specific qualitative factors. A reporting unit is defined as an operating segment or
one level below an operating segment. Dental has two reporting units, consisting of software
services and equipment, and has elected to make October 1 the annual impairment assessment
date. Based con the results of reviews performed, no impairment loss was recognized in the results
of operations for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018.

Retirement Plans

Dental sponsors several defined benefit plans around the world. Information included in Note 15
reflects the eight fargest plans, which make up substantially all of the defined benefit plan
obligations, while the smaller plans are accounted for on a cash basis, as the difference to apply
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the accrual method is insignificant. The most significant plans are a Support Fund plan in Germany
and the Top Hat and Retirement Indemnity Trophy plans in France. The majority of the smaller
plans are termination indemnity ptans or statutorily required plans. Retirement benefits are
generally based on contractual agreements that provide for benefit formulas using years of service
and/or compensation prior to retirement. Dental’s funding policy is to contribute amounts sufficient
to meet minimum funding standards based upon local law.

For the employees who participate in the Plans sponsored by Dental, Dental recognizes a liability
only for any required contributions to the Plans that are accrued and unpaid at the balance sheet
date in accordance with US GAAP. Dental does not record an asset or liability to recognize the
funded status of the Plans.

Lease Obligations

Dental evaluates each lease for classification as either a capital lease or an operating lease.

The Company performs this evaluation at the inception of the lease and upon any significant
modification impacting the terms and conditions. For arrangements that are classified as capita!
leases, the Company records a capital asset for the leased equipment along with a corresponding
capital lease cbligation in an amount equal to the lesser of the present value of the minimum lease
payments to be made over the life of the lease at the beginning of the lease term, or the fair value
of the leased property.

Once placed in service, the capital asset is amortized on a straight-line basis as a charge to
expense over the lesser of the lease term or the economic life of the leased property. Operating
lease arrangements are recorded to expense as incurred on a straight-line basis.

Revenue

Revenue is recognized in accordance with Accounting Standards Codification Topic 606 (*ASC
606"). To recognize revenue, the Company does the following:

. Identifies the contract(s) with a customer;

+ ldentifies the performance obligations in the contract;

. Determines the transaction price;

« Allocates the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract; and

. Recognizes revenue when, or as, the entity satisfies a performance obligation.

The Company generates revenue from the sale of dental equipment, extended equipment
warranties and practice management software products and services, Provisions for discounts,
rebates to customers, customer retums and other variable consideration are included in the
transaction price at contract inception by estimating the maost-likely-amount based upon historical
data and estimates provided for in the period in which the related sales are recognized. The

Company does not have any transactions that include a material financing component.

Revenue generated from the sale of equipment is recognized when control transfers to the
customer. Depending on the terms of the contract, this may occur at the time of delivery or
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shipment. Revenue generated from the sale of extended warranties is recognized straight-line
over the contract term, which range from one to five years.

Revenue generated from the sale of software licenses is recognized when products are shipped to
customers or made available electronically. Revenue derived from post-contract customer support,
including annual support and/or training, is generally recognized over time using time elapsed as
the input method that best depicts the transfer of contro! to the customer. Revenue generated from
the sale of software as a service contracts is recognized on a straight-line basis over the contract
term, which generally range from one to three years.

Revenue generated from other sources including equipment repairs and related services is
recognized when the related product revenue is recognized or when the services are provided.
The Company applies the practical expedient to treat shipping and handling activities performed
after the customer obtains control as fulfillment activities, rather than a separate performance
obligation in the contract.

Sales taxes, value add taxes and other taxes collected concurrently with revenue-producing
activities are excluded from revenue.

Certain revenue is generated from bundled arrangements that include multiple distinct performance
obligations which are accounted for separately. When software products are sold together with
related services (i.e., training and technical support), revenue is allocated based on the relative
stand-alone selling prices of the goods or services (‘'SSP”). Other bundled arrangements also
include elements that consist primarily of equipment and the related services. If an observable
selling price is not available (i.e., the goods or services are not sold separately), the Company uses
the adjusted market approach or cost-plus approach to estimate the standalone selling price.

There is no specific hierarchy for the use of these methads, but the estimated selling price reflects
management’s best estimate of what the selling prices of each deliverable would be if it were sold
regularly on a standalone basis taking into consideration the cost structure of our business,
technical skilis required, customer location and other market conditions.

See Note 4 for additional disclosures of disaggregated net sales.

Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

Accounts receivable consist principally of trade receivables from customers and are generaily
uncoliateralized and due within 30 days. The Company maintains an atllowance for doubtful
accounts for accounts receivable deemed uncollectible. In assessing the adequacy of the
allowance for doubtful accounts, management considers a number of factors, including the aging of
the accounts receivable balances, historical collection experience, and each customer's individual
ability to meet its financial obligations to the Company. If the financial condition of the Company’s
customers were to deteriorate, resulting in an inability to make payments, additional allowances
may be required. Bad debt expense related to allowances for doubtful accounts is included in
selling, general and administrative expenses in the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Contract Assets

Contract assets include amcunts related to any conditional right to consideration for work
completed but not billed as of the reporting date and generaily represent amounts owed to the
Company by customers, but not yet billed (earned but not billed). Contract assets are transferred
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to accounts receivable when the right becomes unconditional.  As of December 31, 2019 and
2018 there were no contract asset balances.

Contract Liabilities

Contract liabilities are comprised of advance payments and upfront payments for service
arrangements provided over time. Contract liabilities are transferred to revenue once the
performance obligation has been satisfied. The Company’s contract liability balance as of
December 31, 2019 and 2018 was $44,359 and $44,567, respectively. Contract liabilities that are
expected to be settled in twelve manths of the balance sheet date are included in contract liabilities
and obligations beyond twelve months of the balance sheet date are included in other long-term
liabilities.

Warranties

Dental offers standard warranties in connection with the sale of equipment. The standard warranty
period for most equipment is one to two years. Warranty costs are accrued in accordance with
ASC 460 “Guarantees”. Warranty obligations are estimated and recorded as an accrued liability at
the time of sale. Warranty obligations that are expected to be settled in twelve months of the
balance sheet date are included in accrued liabilities and obligations beyond twelve months of the
balance sheet date are included in other iong-term liabilities.

Cost of Goods Sold

Cost of gocds sold represents the costs incurred to provide the Company’s goods and services to
customers. The costs of goods are principally comprised of materials, labor and overhead costs
related to manufacturing of dental equipment and distribution costs. The costs of services primarily
include labor for repairs and maintenance of hardware and equipment, as well as various customer
support for users of the Company's software products and related licenses. Additionally,
depreciation related to machinery and equipment used in the production of inventory and customer
support efforts is also included as a component of cost of goods socld on the Consolidated
Statements of Operations.

Shipping and Handling Costs

For the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, approximately $5,483 and $5,765,
respectively, of shipping and handling costs include transportation to customers, duty and
brokerage, and are included in selling, general and administrative expenses in the accompanying
Consclidated Statements of Operations.

interest Expense, Net

Interest expense, net is comprised of interest expense incurred on the Company's debt and capital
leases, amortization of debt issuance costs and debt discounts, and interest earned on

the Company’s cash and cash equivalents. The Company’s interest expense, net for the years
ended December 31, 2019 and 2018 was $42,258 and $40,866, respectively, on the Consolidated
Statements of Operations.

Research and Development Costs

Research and development costs, which include costs in connection with new product
development, fundamental and exploratory research, process improvement, product use
technology and product accreditation, are charged to operations in the period in which they are
incurred. The Company’s research and development costs for the years ended December 31,
2019 and 2018 were $32,316 and $34,120, respectively, on the Consolidated Statements of
Operations.
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Transaction Costs

In a business combination, transaction related costs are expensed as incurred and not included in
the total consideration transferred for acquisition method accounting. These costs are primarily
comprised of various legal and consulting fees, and other related costs necessary to affect the
business combination. Transaction costs for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018 were
$497 and $4,015, respectively, on the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Advertising

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred and included in selling, general and administrative
expenses in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations. Advertising expenses
amounted to $11,690 and $10,3689, respectively, for the years ended December 31, 2019 and
2018.

Income Taxes

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the income tax consequences
attributable to operating loss carmryforwards, tax credit carryforwards, and differences between the
financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and fiabilities and their respective tax
bases. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected
to apply to taxable income in the periods in which temporary differences are expected to be
recovered or settled. Valuation allowances are recorded against deferred tax assets when there
are not expected sources of future taxable income sufficient to conclude it is more likely than not
that the benefit of the deferred tax assets will be realized. The effect of a change in tax rates on
deferred income tax assets and liabilities is recognized in income in the period that includes the
enactment date.

Dental reports a liability or reduction of deferred tax assets for unrecognized tax benefits resulting
from uncertain tax positions taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. Related interest and
penalties, if any, are recegnized in income tax expense.

Dental has recorded deferred income and withholding taxes (net of tax credits, as applicable) on
outside basis differences in foreign operations. Other than for the US jurisdiction, China, and for
other basis differences in all jurisdictions, Dental has determined the unremitted earnings of its
operations outside of the UK are not indefinitely reinvested for the years ended December 31, 2019
and 2018, and accordingly, has recognized corresponding deferred tax liabilities on the underlying
taxable temporary differences

Stock Compensation Plans

Carestream Dental Alpha Limited Equity Incentive Plan

On March 20, 2018, the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of the Company approved the Carestream
Dental Alpha Limited Equity Incentive Plan ("MEP”) and approved various grant options. The MEP
is offered to certain employees of Dental selected by the Board and certain nonemployee board
members of Carestream Dental Holdings Limited, the parent of the Company (“Holdings Board”).
The Company issued a total of 4,321,631 shares of common stock under the MEP.

The MEP allows for the granting of employee stock purchase plan (*"ESPP”) awards, which
represent the right for an employee to purchase a pre-approved number of shares of the Company,
and stock options. Grants of equity-based awards under the MEP and approval for key employees
or certain Holdings Board members to receive stock-based compensation are both approved in
advance by the Board, and are subject to such terms and conditions as the Board may determine,
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including in respect of vesting and forfeiture, subject to certain limitations provided in the MEP.
Equity-based awards under the MEP may carry dividend equivalent rights, pursuant to which
notional dividends accumulate on unvested equity awards and are paid, in cash, upon vesting.

During the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, the Company awarded stock options and
ESPP awards to its employees and Holdings Board directors under the MEP. ESPP awards
granted in 2018 entitle recipients the ability to purchase shares in the Company at the price of $10
per share, which is the same price Clayton Dubilier & Rice Cobra Holdings, L.P. and Hillhouse
Fund lil, L.P. ("the Investors™) paid to capitalize the Company. Awards granted in subsequent
years are set with a purchase price equal to the most recent equity valuation approved by the
Board. The shares are of the same class held by Carestream Dental Alpha, LP in which the
investors, affiliates of CD&R and Hillhouse, hold equity. The exercise price of options is also set
with the same values as purchased shares. Except under certain termination conditions, including
change in control provisions, options granted to key empioyees will have the vesting period of five
years with the vesting of 20% on the anniversaries of the Grant Date. Options that have not vested
prior to an empioyee's termination of employment will be cancelled and forfeited. The options have
a 10-year term and expire on the 10th anniversary of the date granted.

If an award under the MEP is forfeited, expired, terminated or otherwise lapses, the related shares
of the Company common stock underlying that award will again become available for issuance.
Shares withheld by the Company to pay employee taxes, or which are withheld by or tendered to
the Company to pay exercise price of stock options {or are repurchased from an option holder by
the Company with proceeds from the exercise of stock options} are not available for reissuance.

Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board {"FASB”) issued Accounting Standard
Update ("ASU") No. 2014-08, “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”, Accounting Standards
Codification ("ASC”) 606 {“"ASC 606"). Subsequent to the issuance of ASC 606, the FASB clarified
the guidance through several Accounting Standard Updates; hereinafter the collection of revenue
guidance is referred to as "ASC 606". The core principle of ASC 606 is revenue should be
recognized to depict the transfer of promised geods or services to customers in an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or
services.

On January 1, 2019, the Company adopted ASC 606 using the madified retrespective method.
Results for reporting periods beginning January 1, 2019 are presented under ASC 606, while prior
period amounts were not adjusted and continue to be reported in accordance with the Company’'s
historical accounting under ASC 605, Revenue Recognition. The Company applied the
requirements of the new standard cnily tc contracts that were not completed as of the adoption
date. There was no impact to the year ended December 31, 2019 of applying ASC 606. There
was no cumulative effect adjustment with the adoption at January 1, 2019.

3. Business Combinations
As discussed in Note 1, Introduction and Background, on September 1, 2017, Dental entered into

an agreement to acquire certain assets and assumed the related liabilities, in addition to the capital
stock and other equity interests, which were part of the oral health divisicn of Health.
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DBuring 2019 and 2018, Dental tegally closed on varicus deferred close jurisdiction entities that
were acquired on September 1, 2017. The following table summarizes the incremental impact of
the acquisitions during the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018:

2019 2013

Current assets $ 3488 % 10,258
Property, plant, and equipment 688 402
Intangible assets 460 2,070
Goodwitl 6,327 9,106
Other assets - 166
Current liabilities {3,631) {4,446)
Qther liabilities (162) (215)

) 7170 § 17,341

During 2019 and 2018, the Company completed certain fair value measurements of assets and
liabilities acquired in the 2017 business combination and 2018 and 2019 deferred closings, and
subsequently finalized the valuation of the assets and liabilities as measurement period
adjustments. The following table summarizes the impact of measurement period adjustments for
the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018:

2019 2018

Accounts receivable $ {(1,833) § -
Inventory (542) (1,707}
Property, plant, and equipment - 398
Other assets 96 1,156
Accrued liabilities (714} 743
Deferred revenue - 386
Deferred income tax liability - 7,510

$ {(2,993) $ 8,486

Swissmeda AG Acquisition

On April 1, 2019, the Company acquired all of the assets of Swissmeda AG (“Swissmeda™), a
privately held software provider of dental implant guides. The acquisition was made to expand the
Company's digital dental offerings globally. The fair value of consideration transferred was $8,115,
which included a working capital settlement of $1,315. The purchase price net of cash acquired of
$1,482 resuited in a final purchase price of $6,633.

The acquisition was accounted for as a business combination, in accordance with ASC 805, which
requires that assets acquired and liabilities assumed be recognized at their fair values as of the
acquisition date, with any excess of the consideration transferred over the estimated fair values of
the identifiable net assets acquired as goodwill.

The transacticn included potential future payments to the former shareholders based upon
achievement of certain revenue results thru 2022. The fair value of this contingent consideration
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was not material in the determination of the purchase price allocation. See Note 12 for discussion
regarding other commitments entered into with the former owner.

The following table summarizes the major classes of assets acquired and liabilities assumed as of
the acquisition date, April 1, 2019:

Current assets $ 3,018
Property, plant, and equipment 16
Goodwill 2,667
Intangible assets 4,880
Current liabilities (1,905)
Deferred tax liabilities {561)
8,115
Cash acquired (1,482)
Net purchase price $ 6833

Of the goodwill recorded, no amount is deductible for income tax purposes. The Swissmeda
goodwill represents strategic and synergistic benefits that are expected to be realized from the
acquisition. These benefits include a comprehensive portfolio of complementary digital offerings
and revenue synergy opportunities in the United States, the Company's largest geographic market.

4, Revenue from Contracts with Customers
Disaggregation of Net Sales

The following table disaggregates the Company’s net sales by major product lines and by timing of
revenue recognition.

Year Ended
December 31, 2019
Equipment Software Total
Point in time 3 283,579 % 23,221 3 306,799
Over time 28,797 81,319 110,116

$ 312,375 & 104,540 % 416,915

5. Accounts Receivable, Net

Trade receivables as of December 31, 2019 and 2018 were $67,086 and $71,431, net of allowance
for doubtful accounts of $3,245 and $1,292, respectively. Included in the total net receivable
balance are $2,915 and $3,285 for customer rebates expected to be settled through customer
deductions in lieu of cash payments as of December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

6. Inventories, Net
During the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, the Company recognized aggregate

reductions in the carrying value of $727 and $(27), respectively, related to inventories identified for
obsolescence.
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December 31,

2019 2018
Finished goods $ 19,565 $ 15,571
Work in process 3,628 3,447
Raw materials 6,040 5,906
Total inventories $ 29,233 5 24,924

7. Property, Plant and Equipment, Net

December 31,

2019 2018
Machinery and equipment $ 31,112 § 27,108
Leasehold improvements 10,639 5,814
Construction-in-progress 203 2,846
41,954 35,768
Less: Accumulated depreciation (17,097) (7,421)
Property, plant and equipment, net $ 24,857 28,347

Depreciaticn expense for Dental was $9,646 and $5,783 for the years ended December 31, 2019
and 2018, respectively, and is included in cost of goods sold and selling, general and
administrative expenses on the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

8. Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets
As described in Note 3, Business Combinations, the portion of the purchase price in excess of the
estimated fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed as of the acquisition date,

represents goodwill.

Total goodwill and change in the carrying amount of goodwill for the years ended December 31,
2019 and 2018 were as follows:

Balances at December 31, 2017 $ 479,028
Prior acquisition conveyance 9,106
Measurement pericd adjustments {8,486)
Currency translation adjustment {7,267)
Balances at December 31, 2018 472,381
Prior acquisition conveyance 6,327
Measurement period adjustments 2,993
Swissmeda acquisition 2,667
Currency translation adjustment (1,630)
Balances at December 31, 2019 $ 482,738
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There was no impairment of goodwill or other intangible assets for the years ended December 31,

2019 and 2018.
A schedule of activity for the definite lived intangible assets by major category for 2019 and 2018 is
as follows:
Customet Developed Trademark/
Relationship Technology Trade Names Total

Balances at December 31, 2017 $ 138,683 $ 172,760 % 17477 % 328,920
Additions 2,070 - - 2,070
Amortization (14,248) (32,071) (938) (47,257)
Currency translation {619) {2,236) {240) (3,085}
Balances at December 31, 2018 125,886 138,453 16,299 280,638
Additions 4,480 800 80 5,340
Amortization (14,790) (32,191) {950) (47,931}
Currency translation (73) (265) (30) (368)
Balances at December 31, 2019 $ 115,483 § 106,797 § 15398 § 237,679
Weighted avg remaining amortization

years 8.69 3.96 17.71

Amortization expense related to intangible assets was $47,931 and $47,257 for the years ended
December 31, 2019 and 2018 on the Consolidated Statements of Operations, respectively.

Estimated future amortization expense related to intangible assets at December 31, 2019 is as

follows:

2020
2021
2022
2023
2024
Thereafter

9. Accrued Liabilities

$

48,226
47,719
41,317
22,360
17,173
60,884

237,679

The components of accrued liabilities as of December 31, 2019 and 2018 were as follows:

Accrued employment-related liabilities $
Income taxes payable and other accrued taxes

Local non-income taxes

Accrued warranty obligations

Other

2019 2018
21879 % 21,649
4,715 1,130
6,215 3,784
2,024 2,291
13,887 17,613
$ 48,720 § 46,467
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10.

The other component above consists of other miscellaneous current liabilities that, individually, are
less than 5% of the total current liabilities in the Consclidated Balance Sheets.

Debt

On September 1, 2017, the Company executed a First Lien Credit Agreement (the “First Lien
Credit Agreement”) which provides the Company with access to a $80,000 revolving credit facility
{the “First Lien Revolving Facility”) and a $375,000 term loan facility (the “First Lien Term Loans”).
The Company also executed a Second Lien Credit Agreement dated September 1, 2017 (the
“Second Lien Credit Agreement”) which provides the Company with access to a $165,000 term
loan facility (the "Second Lien Term Loans"). There are no third-party guarantors of the Company's
debt holdings. Additionally, the Company was in compliance with all debt covenant requirements
as of December 31, 2019 and 2018.

The obligations under the First Lien Credit Facility are collateralized by substantially all of the
assets of Carestream Dental Technology Parent Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, and the subsidiary guarantors and the capital stock of Carestream Dental Technology
Parent Limited held by Carestream Dental Technology Holdings 2 Limited. The First Lien Credit
Facility is senior to all junior lien debt and unsecured debt. The obligations under the Second Lien
Credit Facility are collateralized by substantially the same collateral as under the First Lien and the
liens are subordinated to the liens collateralizing the First Lien Obligations, subject to the provisions
of the Base Intercreditor Agreement. The Obligations under the Second Lien Credit Facility are
senior to the Borrower's unsecured debt.

Revolving Credit Facility

The First Lien Revolving Facility matures on September 1, 2022. Any loans under the facility can
be Eurodollar Loan, ABR Loan, BA Equivalent LLoan, or Canadian Primate Rate Loan. Each
Eurodollar Loan bears interest at a per annum rate equal to the Adjusted LIBOR Rate plus the
Applicable Margin (initially equal to 3.25% per annum). Each ABR Loan bears interest at a per
annum rate equal to the Alternate Base Rate plus Applicable Margin {initially equal to 2.75% per
annum). Each BA Equivalent Loan bears interest at a per annum rate equal to the BA Rate plus
Applicable Margin (initially equal to 3.75% per annum). Each Canadian Prime Rate Loan bears
interest at a per annum rate equal to the Canadian Prime Rate plus Applicable Margin (initially
equal to 2.75% per annum). As of December 31, 2019, there were no outstanding

borrowings under the revolving line of credit. As of December 31, 2018, the Company had $13,000
outstanding which was classified in long-term debt in the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

First Lien Term Loans

The First Lien Term Loans mature on September 1, 2024. Any loans under the facility can be
Eurodollar Loan or ABR Loan. Each Eurcdollar Loan bears interest at a per annum rate equal to
the Adjusted LIBOR Rate plus the Applicable Margin (initially equal to 3.25% per annum). Each
ABR Loan bears interest at a per annum rate equal to the Alternate Base Rate plus Applicable
Margin (initially equal to 2.25% per annum). Upon execution, the Company has drawn down the
full amount on the term loan facility under the First Lien Credit Agreement.
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Second Lien Term Loans

The Company also executed a Second Lien Credit Agreement dated September 1, 2017 (the
“Second Lien Credit Agreement') which matures on September 1, 2025. Each Eurodollar Lean
bears interest at a per annum rate equal to the Adjusted LIBOR Rate plus Applicable Margin {equal
to 8% per annum) and each ABR Rate Loan bears interest at a per annum rate equal to the
Alternate Base Rate plus Applicable Margin (equal to 7% per annum}. Upon execution, the
Company has drawn down the full amount on the term toan facility under the Second Lien Credit
Agreement.

Long-term debt as of December 31, 2019 and 2018 was comprised of the following:

2019 2018
First Lien term loans $ 366,563 % 370,313
Second Lien term loan 165,000 165,000
First Lien revolver - 13,000
Carrying value of long-term debt 531,563 548,313
Unamortized debt issuance cost on First Lien term loan 7,426 8,859
Unamortized debt issuance cost on Second Lien term loan 6,075 6,834
Less: total unamortized debt issuance cost 13,501 15,693
Less: Current portion of debt - principal 3,750 3,758
Less: Current portion of debt - debt issuance costs (2,330) (2,193)
Less: Total current portion 1,420 1,565
Long term debt obligation $ 516,641 $ 531,054
Debt issuance cost - First Lien revolver $ 1,047  § 1,440

Aggregate minimum principal maturities on long-term debt as of December 31, 2019 were as follows:

Minimum Principal Maturities

First Lien Second Lien
Term Loans Term iL.oans Total
2020 $ 3,750 $ - $ 3,750
2021 3,750 - 3,750
2022 3,750 - 3,750
2023 3,750 - 3,750
2024 351,563 - 351,563
Thereafter - 165,000 165,000

$ 366,563 § 165,000 % 531,563
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1.

12,

Operating Leases

Rent expense, including cperating expenses, totaled $4,281 and $5,014 for the years ended
December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively. Minimum lease commitments, based on contractually-
required cash payments, under noncancelable ieases as of December 31, 2019 are as follows:

Amount
2020 $ 3,618
2021 3,185
2022 3,036
2023 2,777
2024 2,065
Thereafter 7,290

The Company has no lease commitments beyond 2029.
Commitments and Contingencies

Legal and Regulatory Matters

Dental is involved in a variety of claims, suits, investigations and proceedings that arise from time
to time in the ordinary course of its business, including actions with respect to contracts, intellectual
property, product liability and employment.

Many of Dental's products are subject to regulation by governmental authorities in the U.S. and
other markets. These authorities, including the U.S. Food and Drug Administration, require
extensive testing of new products prior to sale and have jurisdiction over the safety, efficacy and
manufacturing of products, as well as product labeling and marketing. In most cases, significant
resources must be spent to bring a new product to market in compliance with these reguiations.
The regulation of medical devices, both in the U.S. and in other markets, has historically been
subject to change. Delays in the regulatory approval process may result in delays in coming to
market with new products and extra costs to satisfy regulatory requirements.

There are no other matters pending representing contingent losses that Dental expects to be
material in relation to Dental's business, financial position, results of operations or cash flows.
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13.

14.

Other Commitments and Contingencies

Dental has unconditional purchase obligations with several companies, which provide

the Company with products and services to be used in its normal operations. Contractualty
required total future commitments as of December 31, 2019 are as follows:

Amount

2020 $ 6,369
2021 826
2022 447
2023 -
2024 -
Thereafter -

$ 7,642

The Company entered into compensation arrangements with a former owner of Swissmeda which
provides future cash payments contingent upon maintaining twe years of employment and
Swissmeda reaching certain future revenue levels. For the year ended December 31, 2019, $975
was recorded in other long-term liabilities and selling, general and administrative expenses related
to these arrangements. The potential maximum future cash payment under the arrangements is
$4,530 in the years 2021 through 2023.

Indemnifications

Dental issues indemnificaticns in certain instances and in the ordinary course of business with its
customers, suppliers, service providers and business partners. The Company believes that any
potential costs incurred to settle claims refated to these indemnifications are immaterial to Dental's
financial position, results of operations and cash flows. There were no accruals arising from
indemnifications as of December 31, 2019 and 2018,

Income Taxes

The components of the income/(loss) before income taxes for the years ended December 31, 2019
and 2018, and the related provision for income taxes were categorized by jurisdictions as follows:

2019 2018
income/(losses} before provision for income taxes
United Kingdom $ 11,415 % {7,184)
Outside United Kingdom {33,509) (35,873)

3 (22,084) $% (43,057)
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The provision for (benefit from) income taxes for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018,
was categorized by jurisdiction as follows:

2019 2018

{Benefit from) provision for income taxes
Current

United Kingdom $ 1268 $ 417

Qutside United Kingdom 5,692 5,993

6,960 6,410

Deferred

United Kingdom (303) (280)

Qutside United Kingdom (10,231} ~ (4,435)

{10,534} (4,715)
Total (benefit from) provision for income taxes $ (3,574 % 1,695

Dental is legally formed in the United Kingdom (“UK”) and is therefore subject to a statutory rate of
19 percent. The reconciling items between income tax computed at the UK statutory rate and the
(provision for) or benefit from income taxes for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018 were

as follows:
2019 2018

UK statutory rate 19.0 % 19.0 %
Foreign rate differential 88 1.4
Losses not benefitted (14.4) (23.6)
US tax reform - 1.3
Change in French tax law 0.4 0.3
Nondeductible transaction costs - 1.1
Provision to return adjustments 1.3 (7.2)
R&D credit 1.2 1.8
Other {C.1) 2.0

Benefit from (provision for) income taxes 16.2 % (3.9)%

The Company operates in locations outside the UK, including the US and France, which have
higher statutory rates than the UK, resulting in a benefit to the income tax provision of 8.8 percent
and 1.4 percent for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively,

Losses incurred in certain jurisdictions, predominantly one of the two US filing jurisdictions, are not
currently benefited through the recording of valuation allowance, as it is not more likely than not the
associated deferred tax asset will be realized in the foreseeable future. For the years ended
December 31, 2019 and December 31, 2018, this resulted in a detriment of 14.4 percent and 23.6
percent, respectively.
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In connection with provision to return the Company performed a reconciliation of the tax accounts
for the French and UK subsidiaries acquired in stock acquisitions. These entities filed on a
calendar year rather than short period basis for 2017 and not all information was available to
perform the account reconciliation until after the tax returns were filed for 2017, and the final return
was filed in December 2018 for the UK. This return to provision reconciliation resulted in expense
of 7.2 percent for the year ended December 31, 2018.

The significant components of deferred income tax assets and liabilities at December 31, 2019 and
2018 were as follows:

2019 2018
Deferred tax assets
Net operating loss carryforward $ 1488 § 1,965
Interest related carryforward 15,631 11,247
Property, plant and equipment 772 604
Deferred compensation 1,783 1,351
Other 1,501 2,136
Intangibles 611 479
Contract liabilities 2,652 -
Pension related liabilities 4 757 4,929
Total deferred tax assets 29,195 22,711
Valuation allowance {19,222) {16,106)
Net deferred tax assets 9,973 6,605
Deferred tax liabilities
Intangibles (28,670} (34,091)
Contract liabilities - (925)
Other (1,637} (2,102)
Total deferred tax liabilities (30,307} {37,118)
Net deferred tax liabilities $ (20,334) % (30,513)

Dental subsidiaries in the US contributed their operating assets and liabilities to a captive
partnership in 2018, including the related tax basis differences for those assets, which are included
in the deferred tax table above.

Dental has non-U.K. operating losses of $5,073 for which $2,545 do not expire and $2,528 expire
starting in 2026. Losses incurred in certain jurisdictions, are not currently benefited, as it is not
more likely than not the associated deferred tax asset will be realized in the foreseeable future.

Dentai has performed an assessment of positive and negative evidence with respect to the
realization of deferred tax assets. This assessment included an evaluation of taxable income in
prior carryback years, expected reversals of deferred income tax assets and liabilities, tax planning
strategies, and estimates of projected future taxable income. Dental's valuation allowance was
$19,222 and $16,106 as of December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively.
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Unrecognized Tax Benefits

As of December 31, 2019 and 2018, no uncertain tax positions have been recorded. Interest and
penalties related to the settlement of uncertain tax positions, if any, will be reflected in income tax
expense. The Company did not recognize any interest or penalties associated with unrecognized
tax benefits in the accompanying consolidated financial statements. The Company does not
expect any material changes to the unrecognized benefits within 12 months of the reporting date.

Dental files income tax returns in the UK and in numerous jurisdictions cutside of the UK. Dental is
subject to HMRC and non-L.K. tax authority examinations by tax authorities for the periods ending
December 31, 2013 through December 31, 2019. At December 31, 2019 and 2018 there are no
ongoing tax authority examinations.

The stock and asset purchase agreement Dental entered into on April 7, 2017 with Heatth contains
a three-year indemnification from Health to Dental for all income taxes prior to September 1, 2017.
The agreement is designed to transfer certain tax risks economically to the indemnifying party and
the indemnified party would separately account for the tax unceriainty and any receivable under the
indemnity in the balance sheet, statement of operations and statement of cash flows. That is, the
primary obligor on the tax positicn would account for the uncertain tax position in accordance with
ASC 740 without considering potential recoveries through an indemnification arrangement.

Effects of the US Tax Cuts and Jobs Act

In connection with the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act of 2017 ("TCJA”"), Dental recorded provisional
amounts attributable to the re-measurement of deferred taxes assets and liabilities from a 35
percent tax rate io the new 21 percent tax rate in 2017 and adjusted to record additional benefit of
$580 in 2018. The Tax Act also enhanced and extended the option to claim accelerated
depreciation. Dental elected to not take this, and has not estimated any accelerated deduction for
2019 or 2018.

The Tax Act revised and broadened the existing interest expense limitation rules within Section
163(j), as modified for tax years beginning after December 31, 2017, to generally limit net business
interest expense deductions to 30% of adjusted EBITDA. The Company has significant net interest
expense in the US filing groups subject to Section 163(j) limitation resulting in deferred tax assets
which were subject to a full valuation allowance as the Company expected to be in this limitation for
the foreseeable future. For one US Group the Company reassessed the ability to realizes the
assets in 2019 and released the valuation allowance. For the years ended December 31, 2019

and 2018 the Company had valuation allowance of $11,121 and $9,021, respectively, related to
interest expense limitations under Section 163(j).

Dental assessed other significant provisions of Tax Act including Global Intangible Low-Taxed
Income (GILTI) and base erosion anti-abuse tax ("BEAT"), concluding that these do not have a
material impact based on the current structure. Dental will continue to review and evaluate
infermation as to the impact of the GILTI tax, and therefore will not make a policy election on how
to account for GILT| (as part of deferred taxes or as a pericd expense) until it has evaluated the
necessary information. Accordingly, no amounts related to GILTI are included within deferred
taxes.
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15.

Effects of Tax Legislation in 2020 related to COVID-19

Dental treated tax legislation passed in 2020 related to COVID-19 pandemic as a subsequent
event {conditions that did not exist at the date of the balance sheet) and thus has not included the
impacts in these financial statements {more details regarding the subsequent event and the nature
of the pandemic are included in Note 19). There were significant changes related to the UK and
US that would impact the 2019 tax amounts which the Company estimated for disclosure in these
consolidated financial statements. The UK Budget in March 2020 suspended the scheduled
reduction in the corporate tax rate from 19% to 17% indefinitely which the Company estimates
would result in an increase to deferred tax liabilities of approximately $270 with a corresponding
increase to tax expense. The US enacted the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security
("CARES") Act in response to the COVID-19 pandemic, which includes changes to net operating
loss use and carryback as well as modifying Section 163(j) limitation to 50% of adjusted EBITDA
through 2020. The Company estimates that the CARES provisions would have reduced current
US tax payable by approximately $1,650 in 2019 and increased the deferred tax liability
approximately $1,120 with the difference being a change in the valuation allowance. The Company
has not evaluated the potential impacts of the CARES Act provisions on its valuation allowance
assessment in the US,

Retirement Plans

As discussed in Note 2, Significant Accounting Policies, certain of Dental's employees outside of
the U.S. participate in defined benefit pension plans {the "Plans”) sponsored by Dental.
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The measurement date used to determine the pension obligation is December 31.
regarding the funded and unfunded status is as follows:

Change in benefit obligation

Projected benefit obligation at beginning of period
Acquisition of deferred entity

Service cost

Interest cost

Plan amendments

Benefit payments

Actuarial loss (gain)

Plan curtailments

Fareign currency exchange rate changes

Projected benefit obligation at end of period

Change in plan assets

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of period
Acquisition of deferred entity

Actual return on plan assets

Employer contributions

Benefit payments

Foreign currency exchange rate changes

Fair value of plan assets at end of period

Funded status at end of period

Information
2019 2018
$ 20,334 % 20,248
260 207
561 924
245 249
(3,516) (173)
(222) (48)
4,645 (251)
(2,293) -
(487) (822)
19,527 20,334
1,264 1,247
- 32
34 34
222 48
(222) (48)
{(27) (49)
1,271 1,264
$ 18,256 § 19,070

During 2019, a French government law change impacted one of the Company's benefit plans by
ceasing future service years' credit to employees’ pension benefits. The impact of this change was
recorded as a plan amendment and recorded to prior service cost in accumulated other
comprehensive loss. The following is a schedule of all activity in accumulated other

comprehensive loss for 2019 and 2018:
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2019 2018

Accumulated other comprehensive loss at beginning of period $ {565) § (1,022)
Changes in accumulated other comprehensive income {loss)

Prior service credit - current year 3,840 168

Actuarial (loss) gain - current year {4,648) 288
Reclassifications out of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)

Curtailment/settlement gain 113 -

Amortization of prior service cost (4) -

Total change in other comprehensive loss {699) 457

Accumulated other comprehensive loss at end of period $ {1,264) $ (565)
Amount recognized in accumulated other comprehensive loss
Actuarial loss $ (5,143) $ (733)
Prior service cradit 3,872 168
Total accumulated other comprehensive loss at end of period $ {1,264) $ (565)
Amounts recognized in the consclidated balance sheets
Current liabilities $ 687 3% 415
Noncurrant liabilities 17,569 18,655
Funded status at end of period 3 18,256 § 19,070

The accumulated benefit obligation as of December 31, 2019 and 2018 was as follows:

2019 2018

Accumulated benefit abligation $ 16,729 % 15,273

The weighted-average assumptions used to determine the accrued benefit obligation amounts as
of the end of 2019 were as follows:

Discount rate 0.97 %
Salary increase rate 1.87 %

The components of net periodic pension {income) expense for the Dental Plans in 2019 and 2018
were as foltows:

2019 2018
Operating - Service cost $ 561 % 924
Nonoperating
Interest cost 245 249
Expected return on plan assets (37) (40)
Amortization of prior service cost (4) -
Curtailment gain, net of recognized actuarial losses (1,665) -
Net periodic pension {income) cost 3 {900) § 1,133
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The nonoperating components of net periodic pension expense have been included as part of other
(income) loss in the Consolidated Statements of Operations. The Company froze one of its defined
benefit plans during 2019 and as a result a plan curtailment was recorded. The impact is inciuded
in other (income} loss.

The estimated actuarial loss that wili be amortized from accumulated other comprehensive loss into
net periodic pension expense over the next fiscal year is $655. The prior year service credit that
will be amortized from accumulated other comprehensive loss into net periodic pension expense
over the next fiscal year is $772.

The weighted-average assumptions used to determine net periodic pension expense were as

follows:

Discount rate 1.55 %
Salary increase rate 2.15
Expected long-term rate of return on plan assets 0.83

The expected return on plan assets for Dental Plans that are funded was 0.83% and 0.72% for
2019 and 2018, respectively, In evaluating the expected return on plan assets, the Company
considered its historical assumptions compared with actual results, an analysis of current market
conditions, asset allocations and the views of advisors.

The asset allocations and expected return on plan assets are individually set to provide for benefits
included in the projected benefit obligation within each country’s legal investment constraints. Due
to the diverse nature of the Dental Plans, there are no target allocations. All of the plan assets are
with insurance companies in order to provide for the long-term liabilities while maintaining sufficient
liquidity to pay current benefits.

insurance contracts are designed to fund participants’ expected benefits, and in certain
circumstances provide a return if the performance of underlying assets exceed a benchmark.
Valuations are obtained frem the insurance brokers, which typically represents significant
unobservable data. As such, these investments are classified as Level 3 assets within the fair
value hierarchy.

Additional contributions of $582 are expected to be made to the Dentai Plans in 2020.

The following pension benefit payments, which reflect expected future service, are expected to be

paid:
Amount

2020 $ 687
2021 469
2022 467
2023 569
2024 553
2025-2029 4,244
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16.

Defined Contribution Plans

Dental also maintains defined contribution savings plans in various countries. The total matching
and discretionary contribution expense to Dental refated to the plans for the years ended
December 31, 2019 and 2018 was $1,868 and $2,146, respectively.

Stock-Based Compensation Plans

Nonemployee Director Incentive Plan

The Cormpany offers equity-based awards to Holdings Board nonempiloyee directors under the
MEP. During the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, The Company issued a total of
50,000 and 100,000 shares, respectively, through the ESPP. During the year ended December 31,
2018, The Company granted a further 205,000 stock options. The stock options are vested over
five years from the grant date provided the grantee remains a Holdings Board member on the
relevant vesting date. During the year ended December 31, 2019, 1,924 restricted stock units were
awarded and vest three years from the grant date.

Stock Options
As the grants were approved during 2019 and 2018, and are not retrcactive to September 1, 2017,
any applicable stock related compensation expense has been recorded in 2019 and 2018.

The fair value of stock options was estimated using the Black-Scheles option pricing model. The
following is a summary of the average assumptions used in this model for the stock options
granted:

2019 2018

Summary of Assumptions

Volatility (as a percentage) 50.35 % 49.00 %
Expected term (in years) 5.348 6.196
Strike Price $ 10.00 $ 10.00
Risk-free interest rate 225 % 2.75 %
Expected dividend yield - -
Weighted average estimated fair value $ 522 % 5.04

The vesting of stock options is contingent upon the employee's continued employment. As of
December 31, 2019, the Company assumed for purpcses of the award's fair value that such
conditions would be met in full prior to such date. The Company utilized the simplified method for
the expected term calculations. At the time of grant, the Company did not have historical exercises
on which to base its own estimate. Additionally, exercise data retating to employees of comparable
companies was not easity obtainable. Furthermore, because the Company did not have histeorical
stock prices for a pericd at least equal to the expected term, the Company estimated votatility using
an average mean consisting of historical peer group volatility. The contractual term for exercising
the options is ten years.
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The following table summarizes stock option activity. None of the outstanding options were
exercisable as of December 31, 2019 and 2018.

Number of Weighted Average

Options Exercise Price Fair Value
December 31, 2017 - % - $ -
Granted 2,242,919 10.00 11,304
Forfeited {101,353) 10.00 (507)
December 31, 2018 2,141,566 10.00 10,797
Granted 233,153 10.45 1,218
Forfeited - - -
December 31, 2019 2,374,719 $ 10.05 § 12,015

No options were exercised during the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018. The number of
options vested as of December 31, 2019 and 2018 was 841,171 and 412,464, respectively. The
cumulative total grant date fair value of options vested for the year ended December 31, 2019 was
$5,124.

The total future compensation cost related to nonvested awards as of December 31, 2019 is
$6,888. The future compensation cost is expected to be recognized over 3 years on a weighted
average basis.

Employee Stock Purchase Plan
The Company offers ESPP under the MEP for key Dental employees pre-approved by the Board
that allows the purchase of shares.

The following table summarizes employee stock purchase plan activities under the MEP for the
period indicated:

2019 2018
Weighted average price per share $ 1014  § 10.00
Management Equity Plan (MEP) shares granted 3,250 387,903
BOD Directors shares granted 50,000 100,000
Management Equity Plan (MEP) shares repurchased (10,000) -

$ 43250 & 487,903
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17.

18.

19.

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)

The components of Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) as of December 31, 2019
and 2018 were as follows:

2019 2018

Foreign currengy translation adjustment, net of tax expense of $0 $ (13604) % {11,140)
Defined benefit plan, net of tax expense of $153 and $196 {878) (369)

3 (14482) § {11,508)

Related Party Transactions

An affiliate of CD&R indirectly owns 75% of the Company and HCare owns 25% of the Company.
The Company entered into a consulting agreement with CD&R, whereby CD&R provides various
support and consuiting services to enhance the operational and financial performance of

the Company. The fees and expenses paid for these services were $1,758 and $1,681 for the
years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

There were no related party transactions between Dental and HCare during the years ended
December 31, 2019 and 2018,

Subsequent Events

Management has evaluated events occurring subsequent to December 31, 2019 through June 10,
2020, which is the date the consolidated financial statements were available to be issued, for
possible recognition or disclosure in the financial statements. There were no items identified for
recognition or disclosure except for the following:

In March 2020, the Worid Health Organization recognized the novel strain of coronavirus, COVID-
19, as a pandemic. This coronavirus outbreak has severely restricted the level of economic activity
around the world. In response to this coronavirus outbreak, the governments of many countries,
states, cities and other geographic regions have taken preventative or protective actions, such as
imposing restrictions on travel and business operations and advising or requiring individuals to limit
or forego their time outside of their homes. Temporary closures of businesses have been ordered
and numerous other businesses have temporarily closed voluntarity.

These recent developments have resulted in the Company experiencing a material amount of
decreased net sales, profitability, and operating cash flows beginning in March 2020. Management
expects these reduced levels of performance to continue in the near term primarily due to delays in
large scale dental equipment purchases and reduced service revenues resulting from the dental
office closures. Inresponse, the Company has temporarily closed its primary manufacturing facility
in France, introduced temporary employee furloughs and significantly reduced other operating
expenses such as travel, hiring new staff and third-party contracter spending. The extent of the
impact of COVID-18 on the Company’s operational and financial performance and debt covenant
compliance will depend on certain developments, including the duration and spread of the
outbreak, and the impact on the Company's customers, employees and vendors, and borrowing
levels under the Company’s available credit facilities. Other risks, depending on the duration and
spread of the outbreak, could include adverse impacts to intangible asset values, receivable credit
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losses and increased restructuring costs. While the disruption is currently expected to be
temporary, there is considerable uncertainty around the duration. Therefore, while the Company
expects this matter to have a material adverse impact on financial performance in 2020 and
possibly beyond, the related financial impact and duration cannot be reasonably estimated at this
time.

At December 31, 2018 the Company had $29,173 of working capital, including $26,880 of cash and
cash equivalents, and $80,000 of availability under its revolving credit facility. As of June 10, 2020,
the issuance date of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the fiscal year ended December 31,
2019, the Company currently expects that these sources of liquidity and cash expected tc be
provided by operating activities through June 10, 2021 will be sufficient to fund operating

expenses and other expenditure requirements, and comply with debt covenants through June 10,
2021. However, should the Company not comply with its debt covenants, such noncompliance
could constitute an event of default which, without any amendment or waiver, could then trigger
various remedies available to the lenders, including limitations on the availability of borrowings
under the revolver, acceleration of the payment of outstanding debt amounts, or other actions as
cutlined in the credit agreements.
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